
LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Lake Crago Complex, Activity Room 
525, Lake Crago Dr, Lakeland, FL, 33805 
Tuesday, March 28th, 2023, at 7:30 a.m. 

Call to Order Action Required 

1. Approval of the February LAMTD Meeting Approval 

2. Public Comments None 

3. Finance / Kelly Bennington, CPA, Chief Financial Officer
a. LAMTD Financials None 
b. PCTS Financials None 
c. TD Financials None 
d. Update current Capitalization Policy and Implement Right of Use

Assets and Lease Liabilities Policy Approval 

4. Legal / Ben Darby, Esq.
a. Agreement between the District, Flixbus and Greyhound Approval 

5. Operation / Paul Simms, Director of Revenue Services
a. Extra board position to the Squeeze operation Approval 

6. Human Resources / Steven Schaible, Director of HR
a. Drug and Alcohol new Policy Approval 

7. Executive Director Report / Tom Phillips
a. Agency Update(s) None 

8. Executive Informational Summary / Tom Phillips
a. February Calendar None 
b. Ridership and UAP Update None  

9. Other Business TBD        

Adjournment 

1



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 28, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM #1 

Agenda Item: Approval of the LAMTD Meeting Minutes for February 
2023 

Presenter: Ella Joseph 

Policy Analysis: TA 6 Increase internal communication through systemic 
processes. 

Recommended 
Action: Board approval of the LAMTD Meeting Minutes for 

February 2023 

Attachments:  February 8th, 2023 LAMTD Meeting Minutes 

2



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 
Wednesday, Feb 8th, 2023 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

  
 
 

 
Directors: 
Polk County Commissioner Martha Santiago 
Polk County Commissioner George Lindsey III 
City of Lakeland Commissioner Sara McCarley 
City of Lakeland Commissioner Sam Simmons 
City of Lakeland Mayor Bill Mutz 

 
Executive Director: Tom Phillips  
Executive Assistant: Ella Joseph 
 
 
 

Call to Order 
8:30 a.m. By Commissioner McCarley 

 
 
Agenda Item #1 – Approval of the Minutes 

a.  Board approval of the January 2023 LAMTD Meeting Minutes  
    
[Attachments available] 

 
 

“Approval of meeting minutes for the January 2023 LAMTD Meeting” 
1st Martha Santiago / 2nd George Lindsey III 

 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY   

 
 
Agenda Item #2 – Public Comments  

Julia Davis, Senior Transportation Planner, Polk TPO  
- PGTV video of Tom Phillips and Commissioner McCarley will be filmed at PGTV instead of here. 
- Thanks to Citrus Connection for helping with the grant. 
- Change in policy in the Transit DDR money. 

 
 
Agenda Item #3 – Board Elections 

 
On an annual basis the LAMTD board votes in the positions of Chair, Vice-chair, and Secretary. 
 
 

“Motion to approve same positions as last year” 
1st George Lindsey III / 2nd Martha Santiago 

 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

Chair – Sara Roberts McCarley 
Vice-chair – George Lindsey III 
Secretary – Martha Santiago 

 
3



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 
Wednesday, Feb 8th, 2023 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

 
Agenda Item #4 – Finance / Kelly Bennington, CPA, Chief Financial Officer  

 
a. LAMTD Financials 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date December 31, 2022 

FY 2022-2023 
Year to Date December 31, 2022 

Description YTD of FY 
 Budget 

YTD Budget $ YTD Actual $ YTD Actual of FY 
Annual Budget % 

Annual      
Budget 

Revenue YTD 25% $3,249,513 $6,199,588 48% $13.0 Million 
Expenses YTD 25% $3,249,513 $2,868,499 22% $13.0 Million 

 
REVENUES: 
 
The total revenues realized year-to-date through December 31, 2022, totaled $6.2 million or 48% of the YTD 
budget. 
 

• Farebox revenues reflect $71,656 or an unfavorable 16% of YTD budgeted revenues, due to the 
decline in ridership related to slowly correcting the driver shortage issue. 
 

• Contract revenues related to UAP (Universal Access Passes) totaled $29,168 which is an unfavorable 
40% of the YTD budget. 

 
• Other Contract Revenue Budget totaled $247,780 for: Atlantic Capital LLC agreement of $0.1 million, 

Winter Haven Services of $92,730, Bartow Services of $37,311, and Bartow Express Outside Ops of 
$17,738. To date, $4,500 has been received. 
 

• Ad valorem taxes of $5.79 million have been collected at this time. The total budgeted revenues are 
$6.37 million. Only 95% of the taxes are budgeted by State Law. 
 
Property taxes become due and payable on November 1st, each year.  Discounts for early payments 
are as follows: 
 4% discount is allowed if paid by November 
 3% discount is allowed if paid by December 
 2% discount is allowed if paid by January 
 1% discount is allowed if paid by February 

 
 Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year. The District normally receives 90% of property 
taxes by       May of each year. 
 

• Interest Income on Investment at the LGIP totaled $77,415 which is favorably over budget. 
 

• Florida DOT operating grants of $1.42 million is being billed quarterly.  These grants are on a cash basis 
which means the services must be provided before we receive grant assistance.  
 

• FTA Section 5307 operating and capital grants are budgeted at $3.60 million.  This grant is also on a 
cash basis which means that the District must expend the funds before we seek grant reimbursement.  

4



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 
Wednesday, Feb 8th, 2023 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

Since most of the grant funding is used for operations and preventative maintenance, the grant 
reimbursement is received at the end of the fiscal year after State funds is recognized.  
 

• Advertising income reflects $37,800 which is slightly under budget. 
 

• The Support cost reimbursement revenue is $153,867 which is on budget. 
 

• Other revenues are within budget or have an overall favorable variance. 
 

 
 
 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date December 31, 2022 

FY 2022-2023 
 
EXPENSES: 
 
The total expenses year-to-date through December 31, 2022, totaled $2.87 million or 22% of the YTD budget. 
 

• Salaries and benefits represent 66% of the FY 2022-2023 budget.  As of December 31, 2022, these 
expenses totaled $1.84 million which is 14% under budget or a favorable variance of $294,839.  

 
• Professional and Technical Services expenses totaled $165,304 or 7% under the YTD budget. 

 
• Other services expenses totaled $27,725 which is over budget by 17%.  

 
• Fuel and lubricants expense totaled $173,693 which is over budget by 8%. 

 
• Materials and supplies totaled $170,694 or 17% under budget. 

 
• Dues and subscriptions totaled $16,391, over budget by 31%, and office supplies of $22,978, under 

budget by 22%. 
 

• Property appraiser/Tax Collector Commission are quarterly advance payments.  
 

• Capital expenditures/debt service of $75,684 pertains to the lease purchase of buses and is under 
budget. 
 

• Fixed and variable costs have contributed to some budget variances since they are a combination of 
onetime costs and reoccurring costs resulting in an overall favorable variance. 
 

 
CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 

Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through December 31st, the financials reflect a 
favorable actual variance of $3.33 million with 25% of the fiscal year completed. This variance is 
predominantly due to receiving the majority of the ad valorem income. 

 
 

5



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 
Wednesday, Feb 8th, 2023 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

 
 
 

  
 
 
 

b. PCTS Financials 
Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

Monthly Financial Report 
     Polk County Transit Contract 
              Month of December 31, 2022 
                      Year to Date Report 
              Percent of FY Reported (25%) 
 

   
Revenues  
 The revenues totaled $3.49 million, 140% of the year-to-date budget. 
 The FTA grants have not been received for the new fiscal year. Expenses must be 

incurred before reimbursements are received. 
 Fare Revenues totaled $10,752 or 97% of the year-to-date budget. 
 The Polk County City Contributions reflects a payment of $0.35 million in the FY 

Budget.  
 The County funding reflects payments of $3.13 million for the budgeted grants 

match and county contribution. 
 Rural FDOT Grant Revenues have not been received for the new fiscal year. 
 The FDOT Sunrail Grant Revenues have not been received for the new fiscal year. 

 
Expenses 
 Operating expenses consists of labor costs, operating expenses, and contract 

expenses. 
 Total expenses for the period totaled $1.89 million or 76% of the year-to-date 

budget.  
 Salaries and wages totaled $0.75 million or 68% of the YTD Budget. 
 Operating expenses totaled $0.57 million or 70% of the YTD Budget. 
 The contract services are for contractual cost for the several routes with the 

Contractor Transitions Commute Solutions with expenses YTD totaling $0.58 
million or 98% of the YTD budget. 

 STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 9/30/21 9/30/20 9/30/19 9/30/18 9/30/17 
1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)   10.68% 8.48% 10.13% 13.00% 10.04% 
2.  Cost per revenue hour                               $130.01 $117.66 $116.62 $108.42 $106.94 
3.  Revenue Hours                                           135,115 146,700 145,405 146,597 142,189 
4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                            $878,132 $744,587 $949,887 $1,082,166 $834,971 
5.  Ridership                                                   591,937 855,409 1,294,771 1,252,600 1,346,211 

 

6



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 
Wednesday, Feb 8th, 2023 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

 
Operating Results 
 Actual Revenues exceeded Expenses by $1.6 million. 

 
 
 
 

c. TD Financials  
 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

                                  The Transportation Disadvantaged Program 
                 Month of December 31, 2022 
                      Year to Date Report 
             Percent of FY Reported (50%) 
State FY July 1, 2022, thru June 30, 2023 

   
 

    
Revenues  
 The revenues totaled $660,125 or 93% of the year-to-date budget. 
 The TD Trust Fund Grant drawdown reflects $599,984 or 94% of the year-to-date 

budget. 
 Contract Revenues and other revenues totaled $158. 
 The County funding for the match totaled $59,983 or 85% of the year-to-date 

budget. 
 
Expenses 
 Operating expenses consists of labor costs, operating expenses, and contract 

expenses. 
 Total expenses for the period totaled $593,037 or 84% of the year-to-date budget.  
 Salaries, wages, and benefits totaled $433,013 or 85% of the YTD Budget. 
 Operating expenses totaled $160,024 or 80% of the YTD Budget. 

 
Operating Results 
 Actual Revenues exceeded Expenses by $67,088.  

 
 
 

d. Corridor Grant PTGA, Resolution 23-10 
 

These funds will be utilized to assist the District with administrative, 
management, and operation expenses necessary to provide public 
transportation services to the citizens of Polk County.   7



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 
Wednesday, Feb 8th, 2023 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

  
 The FDOT funding to LAMTD for this project is $537,737 with 

matching funds provided by the District, as shown below. 
 

 
  
  
 

 
[Attachments available] 
 

“Approval of the 2022/2023 PTGA for the utilization of FDOT State Transit Corridor 
Grant Program funds totaling $1,075,474 in support of the South Florida Corridor.” 
 
1st George Lindsey III / 2nd Bill Mutz 
 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item #5 – Marketing / Erin Killebrew Kinlaw, Director of External Affairs  
David Walters and Erin Killebrew Kinlaw presented the bi-annual marketing update.  
 

[Attachments available] 
 

 
 
Agenda Item #6 – Cindy Mitchell, Transportation Disadvantaged Program Coordinator 
Summary of the Coordinating Agencies currently providing non-emergency medical transportation trips in Polk 
County. These agencies also provide valuable data that contributes to our annual AOR (Annual Operating 
Report) to the CTD. (Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged). 
 

[Attachments available] 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item #7 – Executive Director Report / Tom Phillips 

 
a. Record Retention Policy  

This policy is to clarify the requirements for the retention and destruction of public records for 
the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District (District). It is not intended to serve as authorization 
to destroy or otherwise dispose of unscheduled records nor is it intended to cover every 
possible situation in which decisions about the retention or destruction of records must occur. 
This policy is intended to complement the use of approved records retention and disposition 
schedules, not replace or supersede them. 

State Funding  $       537,737  

LAMTD Match  $       537,737 
Total Funding  $    1,075,474 

8



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 
Wednesday, Feb 8th, 2023 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

[Attachments available] 
 

“Approval of the Record Retention Policy.” 
 
1st George Lindsey III / 2nd Martha Santiago 
 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 

b. Agency Updates 
- Thanks to Ana Ervin from HR for working with Florida League of Cities and recovering $3,700 

as of today from deductibles  
- Employee Engagement Survey is out with CCTV this morning and employees have until 

February 27th to complete the Google Form. The results will be presented by Dr. Collins at the 
March Board Meeting 

- There is a new Bus Bench Contract, and we are meeting with the City of Lakeland first to be on 
the same page, then with Creative Outdoors  

- Thanks to Bill for the contract negotiation with the Union  
 
 

Agenda Item #8 – Executive Director Informational Summary 
 
a. January Calendar 

 
[Attachment Available] 
 

b. Ridership and UAP Update 
 
[Attachment Available] 

 
 

Agenda Item #9 – Other Business 
 
 
 

Adjournment at 8:46 a.m. 
 
 
 
Approved this 28th day of March 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Chair – Lakeland City Commissioner Sara Roberts McCarley Minutes Recorder – Ella Joseph 

9



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 28, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM #3a 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: January 31, 2023, LAMTD Monthly Financial Statement 
 FY 2022-23  
 
Presenter: Kelly Bennington, CFO 
 
Recommended   
Action: None 
 
Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 
District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 
actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 
statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 
 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management, and the public to 
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 
the budget. 

 
Attachments: See Attachments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the YTD January 31, 2023 

FY 2022-2023 
Year-to-Date January 31, 2023 

Description YTD of FY 
 Budget 

YTD Budget $ YTD Actual $ Actual % of FY 
Annual Budget  

Annual      
Budget 

Revenue YTD 33% $4,332,684 $6,646,242 51% $13.0 Million 
Expenses YTD 33% $4,332,684 $3,597,645 28% $13.0 Million 

 
REVENUES: 
 
The total revenues realized year-to-date through January 31, 2023, totaled $6.6 million or 51% of the annual budget. 
 

• Farebox revenues reflect $94,527 or 28% of the annual budgeted revenues, an unfavorable variance of $19,100, 
due to the decline in ridership related to slowly correcting the driver shortage issue. 
 

• Contract revenues related to UAP (Universal Access Passes) totaled $139,624 or 71% of the annual budget. 
 
• Other Contract Revenue Budget totaled $247,780 for: Atlantic Capital LLC agreement of $0.1 million, Winter 

Haven Services of $92,730, Bartow Services of $37,311, and Bartow Express Outside Ops of $17,738. To date, 
$16,271 has been received. 
 

• Ad valorem taxes of $5.92 million have been collected at this time. The total budgeted revenues are $6.37 
million. Only 95% of the taxes are budgeted by State Law. 
 
Property taxes become due and payable on November 1st, each year.  Discounts for early payments are as 
follows: 
 4% discount is allowed if paid by November 
 3% discount is allowed if paid by December 
 2% discount is allowed if paid by January 
 1% discount is allowed if paid by February 

 
 Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year. The District normally receives 90% of property taxes by      
 May of each year. 
 

• Interest Income on Investment at the LGIP totaled $123,071 which is favorably over budget. 
 

• Florida DOT operating grants of $1.42 million is being billed quarterly.  These grants are on a cash basis which 
means the services must be provided before we receive grant assistance.  
 

• FTA Section 5307 operating and capital grants are budgeted at $3.60 million.  This grant is also on a cash basis 
which means that the District must expend the funds before we seek grant reimbursement.  Since most of the 
grant funding is used for operations and preventative maintenance, the grant reimbursement is received at the 
end of the fiscal year after State funds is recognized.  
 

• Advertising income reflects $73,350 which is slightly over budget. 
 

• The Support cost reimbursement revenue is $205,156 which is on budget. 
 

• Other revenues are within budget or have an overall favorable variance. 
 

 
 

 

11



 
 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the YTD January 31, 2023 

FY 2022-2023 
 
EXPENSES: 
 
The total expenses year-to-date through January 31, 2023, totaled $3.60 million or 28% of the annual budget. 
 

• Salaries and benefits represent 66% of the FY 2022-2023 budget.  As of January 31, 2023, these expenses totaled 
$2.33 million which is 23% under budget or a favorable variance of $0.52 million.  

 
• Professional and Technical Services expenses totaled $189,608 or 27% of the annual budget. 

 
• Other services expenses totaled $31,929 which is slightly over budget.  

 
• Fuel and lubricants expense totaled $238,217 which is 37% of the annual budget. 

 
• Materials and supplies totaled $192,530 or under budget by $80,903. 

 
• Dues and subscriptions totaled $20,882, 42% of the annual budget, and office supplies of $21,917, 19% of the 

annual budget. 
 

• Property appraiser/Tax Collector Commission are quarterly advance payments.  
 

• Capital expenditures/debt service of $100,912 pertains to the lease purchase of buses and is under budget. 
 

• Fixed and variable costs have contributed to some budget variances since they are a combination of onetime 
costs and reoccurring costs resulting in an overall favorable variance. 
 

 
CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 

Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through January 31st, the financials reflect a favorable actual 
variance of $3.05 million with 33% of the fiscal year completed. This variance is predominantly due to receiving the 
majority of the ad valorem income. 

 
 

 
 

 STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 9/30/21 9/30/20 9/30/19 9/30/18 9/30/17 
1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)   10.68% 8.48% 10.13% 13.00% 10.04% 
2.  Cost per revenue hour                               $130.01 $117.66 $116.62 $108.42 $106.94 
3.  Revenue Hours                                           135,115 146,700 145,405 146,597 142,189 
4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                            $878,132 $744,587 $949,887 $1,082,166 $834,971 
5.  Ridership                                                   591,937 855,409 1,294,771 1,252,600 1,346,211 

 

12



Month YTD
Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance

$'s-Fav/(Unfav) $'s-Fav/(Unfav)

Account
Farebox/Pass Sales 26,271$               28,407$               (2,136)$                94,527$               113,627$             (19,100)$              28% 340,880$             
Contract Income (UAP) 10,821$               16,299$               (5,478)$                139,624$             65,195$               74,429$               71% 195,585$             
Other Contract Revenue -$                        20,648$               (20,648)$              16,271$               82,593$               (66,322)$              7% 247,779$             
Miscellaneous Income                    824$                    483$                    341$                    20,394$               1,933$                 18,461$               352% 5,800$                 
Advertising Revenue                     35,550$               13,000$               22,550$               73,350$               52,000$               21,350$               47% 156,000$             
Investment/Interest Income (net) 45,656$               2,036$                 43,620$               123,071$             8,144$                 114,927$             504% 24,431$               
Ad Valorem Income, net 133,936$             530,483$             (396,547)$            5,922,115$          2,121,932$          3,800,183$          93% 6,365,796$          
FDOT Operating Grant -$                        118,137$             (118,137)$            -$                        472,549$             (472,549)$            0% 1,417,646$          
Federal Operating Grant 19,678$               299,889$             (280,211)$            19,678$               1,179,876$          (1,160,198)$         1% 3,598,662$          
Cost Recovery 10,723$               2,083$                 8,640$                 20,622$               8,333$                 12,289$               82% 25,000$               
SQUEEZE                                 500$                    -$                        500$                    3,900$                 -$                        3,900$                 0% -$                        
PCTS - Support Cost Reimb. 51,289$               51,289$               (0)$                       205,156$             205,157$             (1)$                       33% 615,472$             
Gain on Disposal of Asset -$                        417$                    (417)$                   7,534$                 1,667$                 5,867$                 151% 5,000$                 

TOTAL REVENUES 335,248$             1,083,171$          (747,923)$            6,646,242$          4,313,006$          2,333,237$          51% 12,998,051$        

Salaries 424,560$             495,149$             70,588$               1,598,449$          1,980,594$          382,145$             27% 5,941,782$          
Employee Benefits 190,382$             217,258$             26,875$               727,046$             869,030$             141,984$             28% 2,607,091$          
Advertising Fees -$                        1,917$                 1,917$                 -$                        7,667$                 7,667$                 0% 23,000$               
Professional & Technical Ser 31,652$               59,073$               27,421$               189,608$             236,293$             46,686$               27% 708,880$             
Contract Maintenance Services 54,376$               9,513$                 (44,863)$              68,801$               38,050$               (30,751)$              60% 114,150$             
Other Services 3,944$                 7,913$                 3,968$                 31,929$               31,650$               (279)$                   34% 94,950$               
Fuel & Lubricants 64,524$               53,687$               (10,837)$              238,217$             214,746$             (23,470)$              37% 644,239$             
Freight 1,544$                 1,096$                 (449)$                   4,486$                 4,383$                 (103)$                   34% 13,150$               
Repairs & Maintenance 27$                      5,750$                 5,723$                 412$                    23,000$               22,588$               1% 69,000$               
Materials & Supplies 59,394$               68,358$               8,964$                 192,530$             273,433$             80,903$               23% 820,300$             
Utilities/Telephone 12,546$               13,125$               579$                    52,005$               52,500$               495$                    33% 157,500$             
Insurance Expense 40,222$               41,421$               1,199$                 160,837$             165,683$             4,847$                 32% 497,050$             
Dues & Subscriptions 4,441$                 4,158$                 (282)$                   20,882$               16,633$               (4,248)$                42% 49,900$               
Education/Training/Meeting/Travel 3,280$                 9,708$                 6,429$                 6,403$                 38,833$               32,430$               5% 116,500$             
Service Charges 981$                    713$                    (269)$                   2,927$                 2,850$                 (77)$                     34% 8,550$                 
Office Expense 2,633$                 9,821$                 7,188$                 21,917$               39,283$               17,366$               19% 117,850$             
Advertising & Promotions 2,524$                 2,500$                 (24)$                     11,553$               10,000$               (1,553)$                39% 30,000$               
Miscellaneous Expenses 6,732$                 6,688$                 (45)$                     7,338$                 26,750$               19,412$               9% 80,250$               
Property Appraiser/Tax Collector Comm 3,681$                 18,442$               14,762$               161,392$             161,392$             -$                        73% 221,309$             
Capital Expenditures/ Debt Service 25,228$               56,883$               31,655$               100,912$             227,533$             126,622$             15% 682,600$             
Bad Debt -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        0% -$                        

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 932,672$             1,083,171$          (150,499)$            3,597,645$          4,420,306$          (822,661)$            28% 12,998,051$        

(OVER)/UNDER EXPENDITURES (597,424)$            -$                        (597,424)$            3,048,597$          (107,300)$            3,155,897$          -$                        

LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT
FY 2022-2023

MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENT
MONTH OF JANUARY 2023

Approved Annual 
Budget

Total 
Annual 

%

13



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 28, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM #3b 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: January 31, 2023, Financials for Polk County Transit Services 

Contract – FY 2022-23 
 
 
Presenter: Kelly Bennington, CFO 
 
  
Recommended  
Action: None  
 
   
Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 
district’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 
actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 
statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 
 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management, and the public to 
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 
the budget. 

 
 
Attachments: See Attachments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 28, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM #3b 

 
 

 
Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

Monthly Financial Report 
     Polk County Transit Contract 
              Month of January 31, 2023 
                      Year to Date Report 
              Percent of FY Reported (33%) 
 

   
Revenues  
 The revenues totaled $4.30 million or 43% of the annual budget. 

• The FTA grants have not been received for the new fiscal year. Expenses must 
be incurred before reimbursements are received. 

• Fare Revenues totaled $15,001 or 34% of the annual budget. 
• The Polk County City Contributions received totaled $0.66 million or 123% 

of the annual budget.  
• The County funding reflects payments of $3.13 million or 100% of the annual 

budget which includes the county match of $2.20 million and the county 
contribution of $0.93 million. 

• Rural FDOT Grant Revenues have not been received for the new fiscal year. 
• The FDOT Sunrail Grant Revenues have not been received for the new fiscal 

year. 
 
Expenses 
 Operating expenses consists of labor costs, operating expenses, and contract 

expenses. 
 Total expenses for the period totaled $2.68 million or 27% of the annual budget.  

• Salaries and wages totaled $1.20 million or 27% of the annual budget. 
• Operating expenses totaled $0.92 million or 28% of the annual budget. 
• The contract services are for the contractual cost for several routes with the 

contractor Transitions Commute Solutions with expenses totaling $0.56 
million or 24% of the annual budget. 

 
Operating Results 
 Actual Revenues exceeded Expenses by $1.6 million. 

15



Annual 
Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual

Percent 
Expended

Revenues 
County Match 2,198,753$             732,918$            2,198,753$         100%
Other Contract Revenue - County         -$                            -$                        -$                       
City Contribution 533,611$                177,870$            658,554$            123%
County Contribution - PCTS 933,454$                311,151$            933,454$            100%
Other Revenue Transfer Cares Funding -$                            -$                        -$                       0%

Fares 44,400$                  14,800$              15,001$              34%

FDOT Block Grants:
G2371 - WHAT/ADA 785,441$                261,814$            -$                       0%
RURAL 1,486,722$             495,574$            -$                       0%
SUNRAIL 249,740$                83,247$              -$                       0%

FTA
FTA 5307 Grant 3,729,941$             1,243,314$         -$                   0%

 
Capital Contributions - County 42,000$                  14,000$              -$                   0%

Total 10,004,062$           3,334,688$         4,301,953$         43%

Annual 
Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual

Percent 
Expended

Expenses
Labor 4,387,576$             1,462,525$         1,199,269$         27%

Contract 2,319,050$             773,017$            557,819$            24%

Operating 3,255,436$             1,085,145$         921,355$            28%

Capital 42,000$                  14,000$              -$                       0%

Total 10,004,062$           3,334,687$         2,678,443$         27%

Expenses

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District
Financial Statement

Polk County Contract
Month of January 2023

Revenue

16



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 28, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM #3c 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: January 31, 2023, Financials for The Transportation 

Disadvantaged Program– FY 2022-23 
 
 
Presenter: Kelly Bennington, CFO 
 
 
Recommended  
Action: None  
  

 
Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 
District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 
actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 
statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 
 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management, and the public to 
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 
the budget. 

 
 The Transportation Disadvantaged Program fiscal year starting 

July 1, 2022 and ends June 30, 2023. The funding is 90% State 
for the Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund and 10% 
matching funds funded by Polk County. There are some other 
third-party revenues for contract services. 

 
 
Attachments: See Attachments 
 
 
 
 
 

17



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 28, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM #3c 

 
 

 
 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

The Transportation Disadvantaged Program 
Month of January 31, 2023 

Year to Date Report 
Percent of FY Reported (58%) 

State FY July 1, 2022, thru June 30, 2023 
   

 
    
Revenues  
 The revenues totaled $790,125 or 56% of the annual budget. 

• The TD Trust Fund Grant drawdown reflects $718,166 or 56% of the annual 
budget. 

• Contract Revenues and other revenues totaled $158 or 51% of the annual 
budget. 

• The County funding for the match totaled $71,801 or 51% of the annual 
budget. 

 
Expenses 
 Operating expenses consists of labor costs, operating expenses, and contract 

expenses. 
 Total expenses for the period totaled $697,715 or 49% of the annual budget.  

• Salaries, wages, and benefits totaled $518,879 or 51% of the annual budget. 
• Operating expenses totaled $178,837 or 45% of the annual budget. 

 
Operating Results 
 Actual Revenues exceeded Expenses by $92,410.  

18



Annual Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual Total 
Annual

Revenues 
County Match 10% 141,819$                 82,728$             71,801$          51%
Contract Revenue 311$                        181$                  158$               51%
Adult Day Care -$                       -$                    
FDOT Grants: -$                       

CTD Grant -Operating 1,276,371$              744,550$           718,166$        56%
Total 1,418,501$              827,459$           790,125$        56%

Annual Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual Total 
Annual 

Labor 1,018,590$              594,178$           $518,879 51%
-$                   

Operating 399,911$                 233,281$           178,837$        45%

Total 1,418,501$              827,459$           $697,715 49%

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District
Transportation Disadvantage Program

Period Ending - January 2023

Revenue

Expenditure

19



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 28, 2023  
AGENDA ITEM #3d 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Update current Capitalization Policy and implement 

Right of Use Assets and Lease Liabilities Policy 
 
Presenter: Kelly Bennington, CFO 
 
Recommended  
Action: Staff recommends approval of updates to the current 

Capitalization Policy and implementation of the proposed 
Right of Use Assets and Lease Liabilities Policy. 

 
Summary: The purpose of these procedures is to update and 

establish controls to account for such assets and liabilities 
as to comply with the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87 which was 
established to classify previously stated operating leases 
to recognize inflows and outflows of resources based on 
the payment provisions stated in the contract, 
establishing a single model for lease accounting. A lessee 
recognizes the lease liability and the intangible Right of 
Use (ROU) lease asset, and a lessor recognizes a lease 
receivable along with the deferred inflow of resources. 

 
 ROU assets will continue to be expensed if the asset falls 

below a threshold of $10,000/item ($25,000 annually per 
vendor). If the ROU asset exceeds the established 
threshold and falls under the parameters of GASB 87, the 
District, as the lessee, will record the appropriate 
intangible lease asset along with a lease liability. 

 
Attachments: ‘3.4 Capitalization Policy – with edits’ and ‘3.4a ROU 

Assets and Lease Liabilities                      
  
 

20



 
 

Finance Policy and Procedures 
Manual 

 

Policy Information 

Division : General Ledger   

Section : 3.4 Fixed Assets  

Responsible : Kelly S. Bennington Revision Date December 14, 2022 

 

1. Purpose 
The purpose of this procedure is to establish organizational responsibilities of District 
departments and managers for fixed asset management, control, accounting, and record 
keeping and to define fixed assets and controlled items and the guidelines for their 
capitalization.  

2. Policy Description 
Fixed Assets consist of primarily Rolling stock, Buildings, Equipment and Furnishings. The purpose 
of these procedures is to establish controls to account for such assets and comply with the 
requirements of 49 CFR 18.20(b)(3) Internal Controls and 18.32(d)(1) Equipment Management 
Requirements. 
 
A separate file must be maintained for Fixed Asset purchased greater than > $2,000.  These files 
must have the original invoices and check stub, with copies of all procurement documents.  
 
The aggregate assets are entered into the Fixed Assets Module in MCSJ as a total (these are assets 
purchased in a group but less than $2,000 an item) and on the Worksheet. 
 
Right-of-Use (ROU) Assets are assets, usually property or equipment, that are leased to the 
District, allowing the District the ability to utilize the asset during the lease-term. ROU assets are 
expensed if the asset falls below a threshold of $10,000/item ($25,000 annually per vendor). ROU 
Assets and corresponding Lease Liabilities are discussed in a separate policy.   
 

21



Finance records purchases, dispositions, and balances for each category and in total, along with 
the related depreciation in the Fixed Asset Module in MCSJ and in the Worksheet. The following 
are the basic procedures followed to record and reconcile fixed assets. 
 

3. Recording and Reconciliation  
All disbursements for Fixed Assets must follow the Finance Policies and Procedures for Accounts 
Payable/Payments. 
 
Any disbursements that are capitalized as fixed assets are entered in the Fixed Asset Module by 
the Finance Dept. 

• All capitalized assets are tagged with an asset ID number, which is tracked within the 
Module and the worksheet. The worksheet shall also include other documentation required by 
49CFR18.32(d)(1). 

  Supporting documentation includes:  

• Copy of paid invoice, receiving documents, and copy of paid check.   
• Worksheet and supporting documents are kept in a filing cabinet in the Finance 

department.  
• A physical inventory of the assets shall be taken at least once every two (2) years, 

to be coordinated between the Maintenance Dept. and Finance. 
• All disposals will be made in accordance with 49CFR18.32(e). Appropriate 

documentation shall be maintained in the Finance Dept. 
• The database shall be reconciled with the GL by the Finance Department. 

4. Objectives 
The objectives of this document are as follows: 

• To ensure consistent District procedures for fixed asset accounting, management, 
control, and accountability 

• To ensure  that  management  has  adequately  minimized  risk  to  assets  through  
internal controls 

• To ensure proper financial accounting and reporting in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), and other applicable 
government accounting standards 

 

5. Scope 
This procedure applies to all District departments and District employees, regardless of 
classification or function. All District managers and employees shall exercise the utmost care 
and diligence in the use, maintenance, and protection of all public assets. 

 

22



6. Responsibilities 

6.1 District Controller 

• Maintains the financial accounting records and reports on these resources on behalf 
of the citizens. 

• Manages the assets assigned to the Controller’s Office. 

• Establishes general ledger accounts for major asset classes, including applicable 
depreciation according to established guidelines. 

• Establishes fixed asset accounting and financial reporting policies  that  conform  to 
GAAP. 

 
 

6.2  Chief Financial Officer Department 

• Establishes a fixed asset management program within Finance & Administration (F&A) 
to coordinate the development and dissemination of fixed asset policies and 
procedures and to facilitate all of the necessary activities to establish asset 
accountability. 

• Manages the assets assigned to F&A. 

• Provides central administration and support for a standardized Fixed Asset 
Management System (FAMS) capable of producing consolidated District management 
reports. 

• Assists in meeting the administration’s custodianship responsibilities. 

• Issues a manual containing District fixed asset accounting and management 
procedures and revises the manual, as necessary. 

• Establishes within the department a disposal operation to assist District departments 
in the removal, redistribution, and sale of surplus assets. 

 

6.3  Department Directors 

• Serve as custodians of the fixed assets and controlled items, including land, land 
improvements, buildings, machinery, and equipment (including rolling stock), that 
are assigned to their departments. 

• Ensure full departmental compliance with the established fixed asset accounting 
policies and procedures, as promulgated by the Board, and the Chief Financial Officer 
or their designees, in order to maintain adequate records of the District’s fixed 
assets and controlled items. 

• Designates a Department Fixed Asset Coordinator (DFAC). The DFAC must be a 
manager within the department in the position of Division Manager or above. 

23



The appropriate level of management will be based upon the size, value, 
complexity, and nature of the departments’ fixed assets. 

 

6.4  Department Fixed Asset Coordinator (DFAC) 

• The DFAC is responsible for managing the fixed asset records in accordance with 
F&A’s established procedures. 

 

7. Acquisitions 
Departments will identify and record all fixed assets and controlled items in the appropriate 
asset management system. Cost by funding source will be recorded with each asset 
record. Fixed   assets   and   controlled   items, including   purchases,  capital   leases,   
construction, improvements,  donations,  eminent  domain,  or  annexation,  will  be  recorded  
regardless  of acquisition type. 

 

Identification a n d  t a g g i n g  o f  a s s e t s  w i l l  t a k e  p l a c e  i n  a c c o r d a n c e  w i t h  t h e  
f o l l o w i n g  guidelines: 

• It is the department’s responsibility to assign, record, and affix identification numbers 
(tags) to all fixed assets and controlled items except vehicles. Fleet Management will 
assign shop numbers to all vehicles. 

• All fixed assets and controlled items will be assigned an asset number upon receipt 
and before the item is placed into service. 

• The department will affix tags to an asset in a conspicuous and convenient location. 

• Tags will remain on the asset throughout the life of the asset. Damaged tags will 
be replaced as needed. 

 

8. Transfers 

8.1   Transfer of Assets 

The transfer of assets will take place in accordance with the following guidelines: 

• Both the transferring and receiving department or section will appropriately account 
for fixed asset transfers. This applies to transfers between departments 
(interdepartmental transfers) or within departments (intradepartmental transfers). 

• The transferring and receiving department directors will approve interdepartmental 
transfers. 

• Once a transfer has been completed, the receiving department will confirm asset 
transfer information. For intradepartmental transfers, the department is responsible 

24



for recording information related to the transfer and for updating the FAMS record. 
 

8.2   Transfer of Federal or Grant Funded Assets 

• It may be necessary to obtain specific grantor approval prior to the transfer of 
federal or grant funded assets when it is determined that the fixed asset is no longer 
needed for the original grant purpose. Guidelines for the transfer of grant funded 
assets, as outlined in the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-102, 
will apply. 

 

9. Retirements and Disposals 
Departments will identify and record all fixed assets and controlled items that are removed 
from service, retired, and disposed of. All assets that are sold, exchanged, traded, 
stolen, damaged beyond repair, worn beyond utilization, cannibalized, or in any other way 
removed from service will be reported as retirements in the current fiscal reporting period. 
All disposals and retirements for fixed assets, controlled items, and other District property 
will be performed in accordance with asset management guidelines and procedures 
established by the Chief Financial Officer or a designee.   

10. Asset Inventory 
Departments will conduct a full inventory of all property under their stewardship, in 
accordance with the inventory schedule developed by F&A and will provide the results of that 
inventory to the Chief Financial Officer or a designee. Should reconciliation of the asset 
counts and the fixed asset system reveal discrepancies, it will be the department’s 
responsibility to locate assets and reconcile all discrepancies. 

The Chief Financial Officer or a designee will produce a District inventory report and provide 
this report to the Departments upon their request. 

 

11. Annual Financial Reporting 
The Director of Finance & Administration or a designee will present a schedule of general 
fixed assets to the Controller’s Office in accordance with the established fiscal year-end close 
schedule and will comply with the reporting and disclosure requirements of current GAAP 
for governmental entities. 

 

12. Records Maintenance 
Fixed asset records will be a complete and accurate accounting for fixed assets of significant 
value and are fundamental to sound financial management. The responsibilities of 
stewardship involved in safeguarding such a large public investment is of the utmost 

25



importance. This responsibility can only be discharged effectively through adequate fixed 
assets accounting and control. Fixed asset records will be maintained for the life of 
each asset and retained in accordance with the requirements of the District for the 
retention of accounting records. 

 

13. Definitions 
Capital Asset – Any fixed asset with an original cost equal to or greater than $2,000. These 
items have significant value and will be capitalized. 

District Property – All property owned by the District, whether purchased, leased, 
confiscated, donated, received by eminent domain, constructed, or annexed. District 
properties may include supplies, real property to be sold for delinquent taxes, police 
property, lost and found items, scrap materials for recycling, capital assets, and controlled 
items. 

Controlled Item – A property item that meets the criteria for a fixed asset but with a value < 
$2,000 will be subject to management control. 

Fixed Asset – Items of property that are tangible in nature; have significant value; have 
an economic useful life > 1 year; maintain their identities, either as separate entities or as 
identifiable components; are not repair parts or supply items; and are used in the conduct 
of District activities. 

Infrastructure – Long-lived capital assets that are stationary in nature and normally can 
be preserved for a significantly greater number of years than most capital assets. Examples 
include, but are not limited to, roads, bridges, tunnels, drainage systems, water and 
sewer systems, dams, and lighting systems. 

Personal Property – All tangible property other than real estate, such as furniture, fixtures, 
movable equipment, materials, and supplies. 

Real Property – All real estate assets, including land, buildings, and improvements to land or 
buildings. In legal terminology, land and items growing on, permanently erected on, or affixed 
to the land; also, rights to use land. 

Right-of-Use (ROU) asset – A contract that conveys control of the right to use another entity's 
nonfinancial asset (the underlying asset) as specified in the contract for a period of time in an 
exchange or exchange-like transaction. 

 
 
Attachment 1: see: S: Finance: Acctg-Finance: Fixed Asset Form  
 
 
 

26



 
 

Finance Policy and Procedures 
Manual 

 

Policy Information 

Division : General Ledger   

Section : 3.a Right of Use Assets and Lease Liabilities  

Responsible : Kelly S. Bennington Revision Date February 1, 2023 

 

1. Purpose 
The purpose of this procedure is to establish organizational responsibilities of District 
departments and managers for Right of User (ROU) Assets and Lease Liabilities, control, 
accounting, and record keeping and to define ROU assets and their respective lease liabilities.  

2. Policy Description 
Right-of-Use (ROU) Assets are assets, usually property or equipment, that are leased to the 
District, allowing the District the ability to utilize the asset during the lease-term. ROU assets are 
expensed if the asset falls below a threshold of $10,000/item ($25,000 annually per vendor). ROU 
Assets differ from Fixed Assets as ROU Assets are leased and not owned by the District. 
 
The purpose of these procedures is to establish controls to account for such assets and liabilities 
as to comply with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87 which 
was established to classify previously stated operating leases to recognize inflows and outflows of 
resources based on the payment provisions stated in the contract, establishing a single model for 
lease accounting. A lessee recognizes the lease liability and the intangible ROU lease asset, and a 
lessor recognizes a lease receivable along with the deferred inflow of resources. 
 
All contracts entered into by the District must be reviewed to determine if there is a ROU asset 
lease or an implied lease. 
 
A separate file must be maintained for ROU Assets with lease amounts greater than $10,000 for 
an individual asset and payment to a vendor exceeding $25,000 in the same fiscal year.  These files 
must have the original invoices and check stub, with copies of all procurement documents.  
 

27



 
Finance records purchases, dispositions, and balances for each contract pertaining to leases.  
 

3. Recording and Reconciliation  
All disbursements for ROU Assets must follow the Finance Policies and Procedures for Accounts 
Payable/Payments. 
 
Any leases pertaining to ROU assets are reviewed by the Chief Financial Officer to determine 
whether the threshold of the lease requires separate reporting. 

4. Objectives 
The objectives of this document are as follows: 

• To ensure consistent District procedures for ROU asset accounting, management, 
control, and accountability 

• To ensure that  management  has  adequately  minimized  risk  to  assets  through  
internal controls 

• To ensure proper financial accounting and reporting in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), and other applicable 
government accounting standards 

 

5. Scope 
This procedure applies to all District departments and District employees, regardless of 
classification or function. All District managers and employees shall exercise the utmost care 
and diligence in the use, maintenance, and protection of all public assets. 

 

6. Responsibilities 

6.1 District Controller 

• Maintains the financial accounting records and reports on these resources on behalf 
of the citizens. 

• Manages the assets assigned to the Controller’s Office. 

• Establishes general ledger accounts for major asset classes, including applicable 
depreciation according to established guidelines. 

• Establishes fixed asset accounting and financial reporting policies that conform to 
GAAP. 

 
 

28



6.2  Chief Financial Officer Department 

• Manages leased assets. 

• Provides central administration and support for all leased assets. 

• Assists in meeting the administration’s custodianship responsibilities. 

• Discusses with Procurement and Senior Management the need to recognize and 
account for ROU assets. 

• Works with Procurement to be notified when a disposal/termination of lease that 
pertains to ROU assets occurs.  

 

6.3  Department Directors 

• Serve as custodians of the ROU assets and controlled items, including land, land 
improvements, buildings, machinery, and equipment (including rolling stock), that 
are assigned to their departments. 

• Ensure full departmental compliance with the established ROU asset accounting 
policies and procedures, as promulgated by the Board, and the Chief Financial Officer 
or their designees, in order to maintain adequate records of the District’s fixed 
assets and controlled items. 

• Utilizes the same Department Fixed Asset Coordinator (DFAC) that is appointed as 
part of the Fixed Assets Policy. The DFAC must be a manager within the department 
in the position of Division Manager or above. The appropriate level of 
management will be based upon the size, value, complexity, and nature of the 
departments’ fixed assets. 

 

6.4  Department Fixed Asset Coordinator (DFAC) 

• The DFAC is responsible for managing the ROU asset records in accordance with 
F&A’s established procedures. 

 

7. Acquisitions 
Departments will wor k  w i th  pr oc ur ement  at  the  t ime of  enter ing  a  leas e  to  
identify any leased fixed assets. If any leased assets are identified, the CFO will be notified 
to account for any potential ROU assets and subsequent lease liabilities. 

 

8. Asset Inventory 
Departments will conduct a full inventory of all property under their stewardship, in 
accordance with the inventory schedule developed by F&A and will provide the results of that 

29



inventory to the Chief Financial Officer or a designee. During these counts, any leased assets 
will be identified and accounted for.  

 

9. Annual Financial Reporting 
The C F O  or a designee will present a schedule of leased assets along with which leased 
assets need to be accounted for as ROU assets to the Controller’s Office at fiscal year-end 
close and will comply with the reporting and disclosure requirements of GASB 87 for 
governmental entities. 

 

10. Records Maintenance 
Fixed asset records will be a complete and accurate accounting for fixed assets of significant 
value and are fundamental to sound financial management. The responsibilities of 
stewardship involved in safeguarding such a large public investment is of the utmost 
importance. This responsibility can only be discharged effectively through adequate fixed 
assets accounting and control. Fixed asset records will be maintained for the life of 
each asset and retained in accordance with the requirements of the District for the 
retention of accounting records. 

 

11. Definitions 
Capital Asset – Any fixed asset with an original cost equal to or greater than $2,000. These 
items have significant value and will be capitalized. 

District Property – All property owned by the District, whether purchased, leased, 
confiscated, donated, received by eminent domain, constructed, or annexed. District 
properties may include supplies, real property to be sold for delinquent taxes, police 
property, lost and found items, scrap materials for recycling, capital assets, and controlled 
items. 

Controlled Item – A property item that meets the criteria for a fixed asset but with a value < 
$2,000 will be subject to management control. 

Fixed Asset – Items of property that are tangible in nature; have significant value; have 
an economic useful life > 1 year; maintain their identities, either as separate entities or as 
identifiable components; are not repair parts or supply items; and are used in the conduct 
of District activities. 

Infrastructure – Long-lived capital assets that are stationary in nature and normally can 
be preserved for a significantly greater number of years than most capital assets. Examples 
include, but are not limited to, roads, bridges, tunnels, drainage systems, water and 
sewer systems, dams, and lighting systems. 

Personal Property – All tangible property other than real estate, such as furniture, fixtures, 

30



movable equipment, materials, and supplies. 

Real Property – All real estate assets, including land, buildings, and improvements to land or 
buildings. In legal terminology, land and items growing on, permanently erected on, or affixed 
to the land; also, rights to use land. 

Right-of-Use (ROU) asset – A contract that conveys control of the right to use another entity's 
nonfinancial asset (the underlying asset) as specified in the contract for a period of time in an 
exchange or exchange-like transaction. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

31



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 28, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM #4a 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Agreement between the District, and FLIX Bus and 

Greyhound 
 
Presenter: Ben Darby, Esq   
 
Recommended 
Action: Approval of the new agreement between the District and FLIX 

Bus and subsequently its affiliate, Greyhound.  
    
 
Summary: These are two separate agreements to utilize the Gow Fields 

and Ride Lot located in North Lakeland for a period of two 
years. This is with the understanding the intermodal center will 
open in the next five years and these partners will transfer their 
services here.  

   
 

32



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 28, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM #5a

Agenda Item: Authorization to add three extra board position to the 
Squeeze operation 

Presenter: Paul Simms, Director of Revenue Services/Training 

Recommended 
Approve three positions for Squeeze extra board Action:  

Summary: The success of the Squeeze operations has created a demand for 
additional operators to continue the safe operations of the 
service. Our operators are part time employees, and sometimes 
seek approval for time off. when a request is made and 
approved, it sometimes requires us to utilize full time 
employees to operate the squeeze which is an added cost to 
Citrus Connection. 

     We are hereby making a recommendation to add three extra 
board position to fill the open schedule when time off request is 
approved. These three operators will be assigned in a rotation to 
fill schedule as seen necessary. Accordingly, the financial 
impact of the three positions is budgetarily neutral. 

33



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 28, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM #6a 

Agenda Item: 

Presenter: 

Recommended 
Action: 

Summary: 

Attachments: 

Drug and Alcohol Policy 

Steven Schaible, Director oh Human Resources

Approval of the new policy 

Ms. Perkins Has created a new Drug and Alcohol Policy in 
response to the FTA Drug and Alcohol Audit findings that 
occurred on 2/8/2023 – 2/10/2023 

Presentation 

34

























LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 28, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM #7a 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Agency Updates 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips 
 
Recommended  
Action: Informational 
 
Summary: Items and information from the Executive Director 
 
  
 
 

35



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 28, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM #8a 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: February calendar 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips 
 
Recommended  
Action: Informational 
 
Summary: Review and summary of events taken place in February.  
 
 
  
 
 

36



1 2/28/2023 10:56 AMTom Phillips

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28

February 2023
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

March 2023February 2023

Jan 29 30 31 Feb 1 2 3 4
9:00am 1-on-1 w/Kelly - 

Tom Phillips
10:00am 1-on-1 w/Paul 

- Tom Phillips

Groundhog Day (United 
States)

9:45am Agenda Study 
(1212 George Jenkins 
Blvd (1212 George 
Jenkins Blvd, 

Copy: Board of Directors, Performance Indicator Data, due CO

5 6 7 8 9 10 11
8:30am Orientation 

2.06.2023 
9:30am Canceled: Senior

Staff Call 
10:30am Triennial 

Findings - Review 

9:30am Senior Staff Call 
(https://us02web.zoo

10:00am 1-on-1 
w/Marcia (Tom's 

10:30am 1-on-1 w/HR - 
Tom Phillips

8:30am LAMTD Feb 
Board Meeting (1212 

9:00am 1-on-1 w/Kelly - 
Tom Phillips

10:00am 1-on-1 w/Paul 
- Tom Phillips

Work From Home
8:00am Repatha

9:00am FTA DOT Audit 
10:30am 1-on-1 w/Carlie

- Tom Phillips

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
Lincoln's Birthday 

(United States)
8:00am New hire 

orientation 2/13/23  
9:30am Canceled: Senior

Staff Call 
10:00am 1-on-1 w/HR - 

Tom Phillips

Valentine's Day (United 
States)

8:30am Email Ridership 
10:00am Bus Bench 
10:00am FW: LAMTD & 
5:00pm Attendance 

9:00am 1-on-1 w/Kelly - 
Tom Phillips

9:30am Senior Staff Call 
10:00am 1-on-1 
10:30am 1-on-1 w/Paul 
2:00pm FDOT/LAMTD 

9:00am Haircut (216 E 
Pine St Lakeland)

10:45am Lakeland Bus 
Bench Program  

10:45am Meeting 
11:00am FPTA Govt. 

Work From Home

19 20 21 22 23 24 25
9:30am Canceled: Senior

Staff Call 
(https://us02web.zoo
m.us/j/81950698488?

10:00am 1-on-1 w/HR - 
Tom Phillips

8:30am Orientation - 
Baucom  (HR Office) -
Carina Chaitoo

10:00am Citrus 
Connection to be 
Featured in Business 

9:00am 1-on-1 w/Kelly - 
Tom Phillips

9:30am Senior Staff 
9:30am Senior Staff Call 
10:00am 1-on-1 w/Paul 
10:30am 1-on-1 

8:00am Repatha 8:30am Updated 
invitation: 
Infrastructure Team 

11:00am (Cont.) 
FDOT/LAMTD 
Quarterly 

26 27 28 Mar 1 2 3 4
9:30am Canceled: Senior

Staff Call 
10:00am 1-on-1 w/HR - 

Tom Phillips
12:00pm Polk County 
4:00pm February LEDC 

9:30am Senior Staff Call 
(https://us02web.zoo

10:30am Polk 
TPO/Citrus 

10:30am Polk 
TPO/Citrus 

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY

37



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 28, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM #8b 

Agenda Item: Ridership Report 

Presenter: Tom Phillips, Executive Director 

Recommended 
Action: Information only 

Summary: Year to date ridership information for the entire system 
including LAMTD, Winter Haven, Rural and Demand 
Response through October 31, 2022 

Attachments: Ridership Report. 

38



39



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 28, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM #9 

Agenda Item: Other Business 

Presenter: TBD 

Recommended 
Action: TBD 

Summary: TBD 

40


	0- AGENDA
	1a- Approval of LAMTD Minutes
	1a- Board Minutes Feb 8th, 2022
	Directors:
	Call to Order
	Agenda Item #1 – Approval of the Minutes
	MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
	c. TD Financials
	d. Corridor Grant PTGA, Resolution 23-10
	MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
	MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

	3a- LAMTD Agenda ITEM FS  - January 2023
	3a- LAMTD Financial Report - January 2023
	3a- January 2023 Financials
	3b- PCTS  Agenda ITEM  - January 2023
	3b- PCTS  Agenda ITEM  -Summary January 2023
	3b- January 2023 Financials PCTS
	3c- TD Agenda ITEM  - January 2023
	3c- TD Agenda ITEM  - Summary - January 2023
	3c- TD January Financials
	3d- Agenda ITEM - Updating Capitalization Policy and Establishing ROU Assets and Lease Liabilities
	3d- 3.4 Capitalization Policy - with edits
	Policy Information
	Division
	Section
	Revision Date
	Responsible
	1. Purpose
	2. Policy Description
	3. Recording and Reconciliation
	4. Objectives
	5. Scope
	6. Responsibilities
	6.1 District Controller
	6.2  Chief Financial Officer Department
	6.3  Department Directors
	6.4  Department Fixed Asset Coordinator (DFAC)

	7. Acquisitions
	8. Transfers
	8.1   Transfer of Assets
	8.2   Transfer of Federal or Grant Funded Assets

	9. Retirements and Disposals
	10. Asset Inventory
	11. Annual Financial Reporting
	12. Records Maintenance
	13. Definitions

	3d- 3.4a ROU Assets and Lease Liabilities
	Policy Information
	Division
	Section
	Revision Date
	Responsible
	1. Purpose
	2. Policy Description
	3. Recording and Reconciliation
	4. Objectives
	5. Scope
	6. Responsibilities
	6.1 District Controller
	6.2  Chief Financial Officer Department
	6.3  Department Directors
	6.4  Department Fixed Asset Coordinator (DFAC)

	7. Acquisitions
	8. Asset Inventory
	9. Annual Financial Reporting
	10. Records Maintenance
	11. Definitions

	4a- Agenda ITEM Flixbus and Greyhound
	5a- Agenda Item for TDAP assistant
	6a- Drug and Alcohol Policy
	6a- Drug and Alcohol Policy
	7a- AGENDA Item - Agency Updates
	8a- AGENDA Item - Calendar
	8a- Feb Calendar
	8b- Agenda ITEM - Ridership
	8b- UAP - FY22-23
	9- BOD Agenda Item Other business



